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Section 1		Celebrate Kingstanding Heritage Project
This project has been funded by Heritage Lottery.  It was established to undertake research relating to the history of the Kingstanding Area – recognised historically as ‘Kings Standing’.

The project will culminate in the delivery of a community celebration event to highlight the 80 years since Birmingham City Council purchased three farm estates in the then Perry Barr Parish and planned the largest Social Housing construction project in Europe at that time. 

The ‘first sod’ (turf and soil) was turned’ in the building of the Kingstanding in 1928 with the completion of building of the main social housing estate in 1938. 

The project will also consider the historical importance of ‘Kings Standing’ – including the pre-historic mound on Kingstanding Road which is a Scheduled Ancient Monument and thought to be an ancient barrow, probably the burial mound of a local noble of the Bronze Age some three thousand years ago. As such it is possibly unique in this area. 

The Ancient Monument / King’s Standing also lies alongside the 'Old Roman Road', known as Icknield Street 

The celebration event will be open to all people living in Kingstanding (past and present) and will be held in St. John’s Community Hall, 124 Warren Farm Road.  This road takes its name from the original ‘Warren Farm Estate’ which, along with Kettlehouse, Kings Vale, and other local Farms in this largely rural community, were bought for housing by Birmingham City Council in 1928, when large-scale residential development commenced in the area. The first of the estates was completed in 1934.  Most of the houses in Kingstanding were built as ‘municipal / council houses’.  At the time, it was ‘the largest local authority social housing development’ in Europe.

The Kingstanding Community’s Heritage Celebration Event will include preparation and presentation of slides, photos & information about the historical importance of 'Kings Standing' / Kingstanding estate – including:
• The historic mound on Kingstanding Road which is a Scheduled Ancient Monument
• Old Roman Road, known as Icknield Street
• Birmingham City Council’s purpose of building the Kinstanding Estate
• Comments & Memories of some early Kingstanding Tenants
• Photos outlining the development of Kings Standing / Kingstanding
The Celebration will also include discussion about Kingstanding and its community to ensure lasting memories are created.

Information gathered together during this project, on the historical nature of ‘King’s Standing’ and the development of ‘Kingstanding’, will be set out on a separate page of New Heights Charity website on  http://new-heights.org.uk/  so that it can be easily accessed and added to going forward.  A wall mounted display of information relating to local heritage will be put on long-term display.

Section 2		King's Standing Prehistoric Monument

2.1	Bowl Barrow at King’s Standing
Bowl Barrow : Type of burial mound (earth used to cover a tomb resembling a bowl).
This monument is scheduled under the Ancient Monuments and Archaeological Areas Act 1979 as amended as it appears to the Secretary of State to be of national importance. 
Name: 			Bowl barrow at King's Standing
List entry Number: 	1016437
It comprises the buried and earthwork remains of a Bowl barrow from the Late Neolithic (4500 - 3000BC) to the Late Bronze Age (3000 – 12000 BC), lying alongside Kingstanding Road (on the route of Icknield Street Roman Road) to the South of Sutton Park.
The name of the area as ‘Kings Standing’ is derived from the occasion when the Stuart King Charles I supposedly reviewed his troops standing on the Neolithic Bowl Barrow in the area on 18 October 1642 during the English Civil War, after his stay at nearby Aston Hall.
The earliest references to Kingstanding were as Kings Standing.

2.2		Bowl barrows:
The most numerous form of round barrow, are funeral monuments dating from the Late Neolithic period to the Late Bronze Age, with most examples belonging to the period 2400-1500 BC. They were constructed as earthen or rubble mounds, sometimes ditched, which covered single or multiple burials. 
They occur either in isolation or grouped as cemeteries and often acted as a focus for burials in later periods. Often superficially similar, although differing widely in size, they exhibit regional variations in form and a diversity of burial practices. There are over 10,000 surviving bowl barrows in Britain.  Often occupying prominent locations, they are a major historic element in the modern landscape and their considerable variation of form and longevity as a monument type provide important information on the diversity of beliefs and social organisations amongst early prehistoric communities. They are particularly representative of their period and a substantial proportion of surviving examples are considered worthy of protection.
2.3 Current Repair status at King’s Standing
The bowl barrow at King's Standing survives well and is believed to include both primary and secondary burials and associated artefacts. These will provide information about the local population, including evidence about dietary habits, diseases and standards of living.  Artefactual evidence which might be found in an official excavation would indicate social status and illuminate possible ritual practises as well as providing information about any technological developments and the range of contacts available to the population through exchange or trade. 
The monument includes the buried and earthwork remains of the bowl barrow at King's Standing, located in a prominent position.  It is immediately to the east of Ryknield Street (also known as Icknield Street) Roman road. The barrow mound stands to a height of between 0.75m to 1.25m, with a diameter of approximately 20m. Although no longer easily visible at ground level, a slight depression at the base of the mound represents a ditch, from which material was quarried during the construction of the monument. This has been partially infilled over the years, but survives as a buried feature approximately 3m wide. 

2.4	Location of Kingstanding Bowl Barrow
MAP EXTRACT The site of the monument is shown on the attached map extract.

[image: ]
Modern Ordnance Survey mapping: © Crown Copyright and database right 2018. All rights reserved

Pedestrians and drivers regularly pass by this prehistoric monument without noticing it or understanding its significance.  It is to the west of Kingstanding road, in the green space opposite the space between Beacon Road and George Fredrick Road. The mound is currently marked by 2 large trees.

[image: C:\Users\John\Downloads\IMG_6249.JPG]
Kings Standing Bowl Barrow Prehistoric Mound – January 2019



Section 3              Icknield Street / Ryknild Roman Road 
Icknield Street (also referred to as Ryknild Street) is a ‘Roman Road’ built between 68 -180AD in England, with a route of 125 miles which runs roughly south-west to north-east. It runs from the Fosse Way in Gloucestershire to South Yorkshire – these were sites of major Roman encampments in England. 
Icknield Street passes through Alcester, Redditch, Birmingham, Kingstanding, Sutton Coldfield, Lichfield, Burton upon Trent and Derby, before going on to South Yorkshire.
The map below confirms its route through the area which was to become Kingstanding – with Warren Farm to its East and Old Oscott to its West.  We can see that it largely follows the route of the current ‘Kingstanding Road’.

The map below sets out the route of ‘Icknield Street’ Roman Road.  It also shows Warren Farm & St Mary’s RC College New Oscott to its East and Old Oscott & Kettle House Farm to its West.
[image: C:\Users\John\Downloads\Roman Map - Kingstanding.JPG]

Sutton Park contains the only preserved section of Icknield Street Roman Road remaining.  It runs in an area of the park between the Royal Oak Gate and exits close to the Streetly Gate.  Like all ancient Roman Roads the surface is cambered (raised and curved for good drainage) and made of small stones & gravel closely packed together, with drains on either side.  The roads where almost always in a straight line because the conquering Roman Army did not need to go around farms or pre-existing buildings when the road was being built.  In 1909 two Roman Coins were found close to the section of ‘Icknield Street’ Roman Road in Sutton Park. 
[image: C:\Users\John\Downloads\IMG_6313.JPG]
Cambered Section of Roman Road in Sutton Park – January 2019
[image: C:\Users\John\Downloads\IMG_6310.JPG]
Icknield Street Roman Road build AD180 - section preserved in Sutton Park

[image: C:\Users\John\Downloads\IMG_6319-1.jpg]Sutton Park Map 2019 – showing site of Roman Road close to West Boundary
[image: C:\Users\John\Downloads\IMG_6321.JPG]
Roman Road Visitor Information at Sutton Park


Section 4	         History of Kingstanding Estate
4.1		Background information
The extensive social housing estates of Kingstanding were built after 1928 on land previously under the control of Perry Barr District Council.  The estate is centred on the junction of Kingstanding Road and Kings Road.
The Kettlehouse estate, with over 4000 houses, was the biggest municipal / council housing project in Europe.  Warren Farm and Kingsvale Farm were also bought for housing bringing the total up to some 6700 houses.
With Government backing Birmingham City Council embarked on a major house building programme in the 1920’s.  The City Council gained control of the largely rural land, comprising of a number of farms, from the then Perry Barr District Council.  Birmingham Council applied under a Housing Compulsory Order 1928 to acquire 450 acres of farm-land then comprising land belonging to Warren Farm, Half-Way Farm (Hawthorn Road), Pool Farm (close to the top of Cranbourne Road) and the Kettlehouse Farm’

The first of the estates which form the current Kingstanding was completed in 1934. It was during the 1930s and 1940s that most of the current housing stock in Kingstanding was built.  Most were built as municipal / council houses with the majority located in the north of the area.  When built it was the largest municipal social housing project in Europe.
4.2	How did ‘King’s Standing’ / ‘Kingstanding’ get its name?
The name of the area is derived from the occasion when the Stuart King Charles I reviewed his troops standing on the Neolithic Bowl Barrow in the area on 18 October 1642 during the English Civil War. The first references to ‘Kingstanding’ were as ‘King's Standing’.

4.3	Location & Size
The extensive housing estates of Kingstanding were built after 1928 on land previously under the control of Perry Barr District Council.  At that time the Kettlehouse estate with over 4000 houses was the biggest social housing project in Europe. Warren Farm and Kings Vale Farm were then bought for housing bringing the total up to some 6700 houses.

Below is a map of the Kingstanding estate from 1930 showing the ‘Kingstanding estate falling within an area bordered by Hawthorne Rd, College Rd cutting across to Kings Road including Gainford Rd but not Elizabeth Rd, and from Kings Rd to Rough Rd including Bendall Rd and Hartley Rd. The map can be found at Birmingham Central Library no 425364.

[image: Old Map of Kingstanding, 1946 in 1946]
Kingstanding Map Birmingham Central Library no 425364

4.4	Kingstanding Estate in 1939
The condition of the estate is best described by an account given in ‘Nutrition and the Family Size’, prepared by the Birmingham City Council Social Survey Committee in 1939:

The Kingstanding Estate is situated about five miles from the centre of Birmingham, just within the northern boundary. It was built in 1929-1930 and although at the beginning the amenities were few, at the time of survey it was well served with shops, public houses, schools, and cinemas. There are a public swimming bath and several communal playgrounds on the estate. No provision was made in the plan for factories and the estate is entirely residential, workers travelling each day to other parts of the city.’

The newly built houses in Kingstanding were all modern, with running water, inside toilets and bathrooms and free of dampness.  They were places where new tenants, many people who previously lived in slum conditions, were delighted to live in.  Each house had its own garden and serviced by newly built roads and pavements.  Although there were no factory and few business units built into the plan (most working residents had to travel to work outside the area), it was an area that people aspired to live in. 




4.5	Area Maps – prior to and after the Municipal Housing Estate
The map below shows how the area around ‘Kings Standing’ was wholly rural in 1901.
It shows Maryvale (Old Oscott) with its convent, school and facilities.  It also shows St Mary’s College New Oscott and small groups of cottages linked to the farms in the area along with fields linked to each farm (including Warren Farm, Kettle House Farm, & Kings Vale Farm),.  It is a totally rural setting – part of the old Perry Barr Parish community.
[image: Old Map of Kingstanding, 1901 in 1901]
Map including Kings Standing in 1901 From Francis Firth Collection

Below is the Ordinance Survey map from 1920 (immediately prior to the planned building work linked to the development of the Kingstanding Estate).  It shows the borough of Walsall (to the north-west), with West Bromwich (to the south west) and primarily farm lands between it and Birmingham city centre (to the south) with has only extended to Aston & parts of Handsworth to its north.
[image: Old Map of Kingstanding, 1921 in 1921]
Ordinance Survey Map including Old Oscott, Kettle House, Kings Vale & Warren Farms in 1920

The Photo below, taken from the air, shows how the farms and fields have been laid out as Kingstanding Housing estate by 1938 – less than 10 years from the ‘first spade in the ground’ linked to the building of the new housing estate.

[image: Kingstanding Housing Estate, 1938 www.britainfromabove Image epw059310 Â© English Heritage]
Kingstanding Housing Estate, 1938

The ordinance Survey Map of 1946, set out below, show how much of the previous farm-land that had been transformed to become the Kingstanding Estate.  The area between Sutton Park in the north, Old Oscott to the west,New Oscott to the east  and to Short Heath in the south has been developed for housing.

[image: Old Map of Kingstanding, 1946 in 1946]
Ordinance Survey map (including Kingstanding Estate) 1946









Section 5	Warren Farm Estate prior to Municipal Housing 1928
5.1		Warren Farm prior to 1928
Below is a copy of a photo of Warren Farm House.  It depicts prestigious well-maintained gardens and buildings.
[image: http://i1099.photobucket.com/albums/g393/astoness/warrenfarmc1931.jpg]
Warren Farm-house

The Warren Farm area was largely rural until the 1928, when large-scale residential development commenced in the area.
Below is a photo taken of people working in the Warren Farm fields – which from 1928 were to be developed as a municipal housing estate.
[image: https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/a/a0/Warren_Farm_Estate.jpg]
Warren Farm Estate – agricultural land pre-1928

5.2	Newly built Warren Farm Estate
The word ‘Warren Farm Estate’ can be used interchangeably with ‘Kingstanding Estate’,  The term ‘Warren Farm Estate’ is used in minutes of the Public works and Town and Country Planning Committees of Birmingham City Council.

Below are typical roads in the new Warren Farm estate taken in 1931
[image: [â��IMG]]
Warren Farm estate c1931
[image: [â��IMG]]     Warren Farm Road 1940s
5.3	People involved in building the new estate
The project has not been able to identify significant information relating to the firms and people involved in the building of the new Kingstanding Municipal Housing estate.  Below is a photo of Mr William Henry Wilson (Person on right of picture below) had a plastering company that undertook contracts in the building of homes in the Warren Farm area.

[image: https://kingstanding.files.wordpress.com/2010/12/mr-carter.jpg?w=300&h=164]
Members of William Henry Wilson Plastering Company

Section 6	‘Kingstanding’ – ‘an achievement without parallel’

6.1	Press coverage of the Building programme
In the press at the time (The Birmingham Gazette) the headline for the story celebrating the official opening of Kingstanding estate in October 1933 was:
Birmingham’s Interwar Council House Building: an ‘achievement without parallel’
Between the wars Birmingham built over 51,000 new council homes – more than any other local authority in the country outside London.  When Neville Chamberlain, a former Birmingham city councillor / Lord Mayor and now Edgbaston MP, opened the city’s 40,000th council home in 1933 he spoke with much local pride and only a little exaggeration of:
“An achievement on the part of Birmingham which has no parallel in this or any other country”.
Nearly all those municipal homes were built on Birmingham’s periphery outside the historical boundary of the city.  The City’s efforts were focused on building housing development suburbs in green-field sites around the outskirts of the then city boundary.  The strength of this commitment was demonstrated in 1928 when the City incorporated 3000 acres of predominantly agricultural land in the rural Perry Barr parish on its northern borders – which was to become the Kingstanding Estate.
This area would within a decade come to comprise an almost unbroken series of new municipal estates in Kingstanding, Kettlehouse, Witton Lodge Farm and Oscott – almost 10,000 homes with a population the size of Shrewsbury.
[image: The Birmingham Gazette article marking Chamberlain's formal opening of the city's 40,000 th council home in February 1933]
The Birmingham Gazette article marking Chamberlain’s formal opening of the city’s 40,000th council home -October 1933
6.2	Need to build Municipal Housing in 1928
The continuing squalor of inner-city conditions in Birmingham had grown more intolerable as expectations rose.  The need to clear city centre slums and redevelop at density this inner core seemed undeniable.  And it was understood that, so long as local wages remained low and living costs on suburban estates high, cheaper housing was essential for those displaced from the slums.
The 1930 Housing Act represented the first concerted attempt to clear the slums and rehouse their population.  The year would also mark the peak of Birmingham’s house-building efforts in the interwar period – 6715 homes completed.
Greenwood (the government housing minister responsible for the 1930 Housing Act) himself formally opened the City’s 30,000th council home in Greenwood Place, Kingstanding.
[image: Greenwood Place, Kingstanding]
Greenwood Place, Kingstanding (1936)
[image: C:\Users\John\Downloads\IMG_6210 (1).JPG]
Greenwood Place, Kingstanding (January 2019)

6.3 Moving from overcrowded slums in Birmingham
The Housing Act (1930) had identified the need to tackle overcrowding as major thrust and measure of rebuilding efforts.  In a survey which followed, Birmingham assessed that 13.5% of the city’s population were living in overcrowded conditions (a significant underestimate given the laxity of the legislative definition at that time).  Most were living in congested slums close to Birmingham City Centre.

[image: A court in Summer Lane in the 1920s]
A court in Summer Lane in the 1920s

[image: [â��IMG]]
Birmingham Digbeth
[image: [â��IMG]]
Slum clearance - Burbery Street Nechells

[image: [â��IMG]]
Aston
Many of the early residents of Kingstanding moved from different communities in inner-city Birmingham – from multi-occupation slum conditions or homes damaged through the war years.  They moved into new, purpose built family homes with all modern conveniences including electric lighting, plumbing and inside toilets / bathrooms.
Other early residents were people relatively newly arrived in Birmingham from Ireland – predominantly moving from rural communities.
All new residents were delighted when able to move into their new modern homes.


Section 7	    Case Histories of early Kingstanding Residents
Wharwood Family:
The Wharwood family lived in Cooksey Lane, Kingstanding from 1931. Joseph and Ethel Wharwood, (nee Freeman) were thrilled with their brand new house, which took them out of very poor housing in Aston. They had three children; Josie, Mary and Joe. All grew up in Cooksey Lane and attended the local school in Kingsland Road. Eventually they married and moved to Streetly.

When my parents married Josie Wharwood – David Booth, they remained at Cooksey Lane, saving to buy their own house, and I lived there too, and also attended Kingsland Road School.

We all have happy memories of our life in Kingstanding, shopping at The Circle, going to the park, playing on the green opposite our house. (71) The family left Kingstanding in about 1969.

My Grandmother worked at the Co-op in The Circle, and my mother worked for a time at Favours, (Hawthorn Road?) We both worked at Littlewoods in Hawthorn Road too for a time.

Neighbours became friends, and I particularly remember the Skerrit family. Josie and Peter, and their children, Jaqueline, Joan, Peter and Paul. I remember Mrs Canadine and Uncle Tom. There were twins, Peter and Jackie Cook, and their grandmother, Mrs Cook.

















Section 8	    Significant Buildings in Kingstanding in 1930’s

 8.1	Odeon Cinema
An Art Deco Cinema Design, Oscar Deutsch's first Odeon cinema was built on Kingstanding Island (junction of Kingstanding Road & Kings Road) and opened in 1935.  This was the first of 300 Odeon Cinemas across Britain.  Subsequently all Odeon Cinemas were built in this ‘art-deco’ architecture.
[image: Image result for old photos of kingstanding]
The Kingstanding Odeon Cinema - 1935
Now in 2019 this building is a ‘Mecca Bingo’ hall.  However its façade remains largely unaltered because it is a Grade II listed building. - 
[image: C:\Users\John\Downloads\IMG_6241.JPG]
The former Kingstanding Odeon Cinema - 2019

[image: Image result]
Original Odeon Cinema interior 1935

8.2        Original Kingstanding Public House
The magnificent original Kingstanding Public House was built on Kingstanding Circle at the same time as the houses.  It was a ‘family public house’ with Dutch gables and a magnificent entrance / façade as can be seen in the photo from 1941 below.

[image: The Kingstanding pub, now demolished]
Photo of original Kingstanding Pub
The original Kingstanding Pub building was demolished in the 1960’s and replaced by a functional rectangular block building typical of that time.  In the 1990’s the 1960’s building was also demolished and replaced by the present red-brick building which stands on Kingstanding Island – it is now closed, boarded up and in poor repair.
[image: C:\Users\John\Pictures\Kings Standing Bowl Barrow Prehistoric Monument location_files\Kingstanding Pub 2019.JPG]
Current Kingstanding Pub (boarded up) 2019

8.3	College Arms Public House, College Road
[image: Image result for old photos of kingstanding]
College Arms Pub -College Road 
The College Arms Public House building remains with its original external features on the corner of College Road. In recent years it has been converted for use as a McDonalds Fast Food enterprise.


8.4        Police Station Kingstanding
When the Kingstanding Estate was being built, Birmingham City Police (Until 1974 the fore-runner of the current West Midlands Police) build a new Police Station on Kingstanding Road close to Kingstanding Circle.  It was a focal point for this new community.
The façade of this building has remained largely intact.  The police station is still in use by community officers but is no longer open to the public.
[image: C:\Users\John\Downloads\IMG_6234-1.jpg]
Kingstanding Police Station - 2019

Section 9	                Perry Barr Reservoir
Perry Barr Reservoir is a covered ‘drinking water reservoir’, serving much of North Birmingham.  It was built on the site of the former Perry Barr Farm – which is not, despite its name, in the modern Perry Barr area, but off Rough Road Kingstanding.
The reservoir is supplied by gravity flow from The Elan Valley in Wales via Frankley Water Treatment Works and the trunk water mains system.  As such this is a magnificent structure.
The reservoir holds 83 million litres (18 million gallons) of water and supplies areas including Kingstanding, Perry Barr, Great Barr and Witton.  Water in this covered reservoir has flowed 86 miles without being pumped – flowing through tunnels and pipes by gravity flow from the mountains of Mid-Wales.

When built, the reservoir was in open countryside, but its surroundings are now totally urban (Kingstanding Estate). 
There are two old matching signs at the entrance. They read:
· City of Birmingham Water Department
· The water in this reservoir (capacity 18 million gallons) has flowed 86 miles, without being pumped, though tunnels & pipes from the mountains of mid-Wales.

[image: Perry Barr Reservoir Buildings.JPG]Entrance to Perry Barr Reservoir (from Rough Road)
[image: C:\Users\John\Downloads\IMG_6275.JPG]



















Birmingham Water Department sign at Perry Barr Reservoir – 2019
[image: https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/thumb/4/4b/Perry_Barr_Reservoir_CoB_sign2.JPG/220px-Perry_Barr_Reservoir_CoB_sign2.JPG]








Plaque describing Perry Barr Reservoir 

Section 10		Maryvale House, Old Oscott
 10.1	Maryvale House Buildings
[image: Maryvale House - Andy Mabbett - 2016-11-28 - 04.jpg]
Maryvale House Building - 2019
Maryvale House (Old Oscott Hill) is a Grade II listed building of significant historical importance in the West Midlands area.  The site has been significant in the retention and development of the Roman Catholic community since the 17th Century.  It is currently home of ‘Maryvale Institute’ – an International Catholic College.  It is also home of the Bridgettine Sisters (founded by Saint Bridget of Sweden in 1344, and approved by Pope Urban V in 1370).  Contained within is a beautiful chapel and the earliest shrine to the Sacred Heart. 

Maryvale’s link with the Sacred Heart began with Bishop John Milner who became Vicar Apostolic of the Midland District in 1803. He had a deep devotion to the Sacred Heart and built a shrine within a small chapel for the public and parishioners to use for worship. This is Britain’s oldest shrine to the sacred Heart.

In 1814 Bishop Milner brought back from Rome a small panel of painted glass showing the Sacred Heart of Jesus as described by St. Gertrude.  He set the panel in a window of the shrine and from that time onwards devotion to the Sacred Heart has been a key part of Maryvale’s life of faith and prayer. All are welcome to visit Maryvale (telephone first) and pray in the chapel and at the shrine.  There are a number of annual pilgrimages organised at Maryvale House.

[image: Bridgettines at Prayer]
Interior of Maryvale House chapel

 
10.2	Historical significance of ‘Oscote House’ / ‘Maryvale House’
The original farmhouse, known as Oscote House, was owned by the Bromwich catholic family since the middle ages. 

During the ‘Penal Times’ of the 17th century, Catholics forbidden by law to practice their faith (known as Penal Laws). In secret, one of the Bromwich family sons was sent to Lisbon to train as a Catholic Priest.  When ordained a priest he returned to live and minister in this family home until his arrest for being a Roman Catholic Priest in 1679. 
When eventually released from imprisonment he inherited the farm from his parents and for over 100 years the farmhouse remained a secret centre for Roman Catholic worship (which had remained unlawful during that time).

From 1794 – 1838 ‘Oscott House’ was established as the first Seminary (priest training college) in England to open to train catholic priests following the reformation. It was during this time that the historic Chapel of the Sacred Heart was introduced as a place of pilgrimage and worship.  

In 1846 the Seminary at Maryvale House could no longer cope with the numbers of trainee priests and was moved to its current location at St Mary’s College New Oscott.

[image: C:\Users\John\Downloads\IMG_6286.JPG]
Oldest section of Maryvale House – built c1794

In 1846 Blessed John Henry Newman moved into the house, renamed the location ‘Maryvale’, and established the ‘First English Oratory’ (small chapel for private worship) there in 1848. 

It has since been a house for religious communities and then for 130 years served the community as an orphanage, school for poor children, and more recently has become Maryvale Institute - an accredited provider of Further and Higher Education and a leader in the provision of lifelong learning, and research opportunities, in Catechesis’s, Theology, Philosophy and Religious Education. 

As well as an education centre, Maryvale House remains a place of pilgrimage and devotion, the focus of that devotion remains the Sacred Heart of Jesus. 

10.3                  St Mary’s College New Oscott
[image: Related image]
St Mary’s College, New Oscott
From its foundation as a Seminary to train priests in 1846 (having moved from Maryvale House Old Oscott) St Mary’s College, New Oscott, undertakes its great task of forming priests and deacons for service in the Catholic Church.
This too is a building of significant historical importance which operates tours open to the public and houses may articles of importance to the heritage of the Catholic church in the midlands.

Further information on the history of the college, events and guided tours can be found at:  http://oscott.net/visitors/ 









Section 11		Kingstanding Baths / Leisure Centre
[image: Image result for Old roman road kingstanding street map]

The Birmingham Baths Committee was a Birmingham City Council run organisation responsible for the provision and maintenance of public swimming and bathing facilities. 

The Baths Committee constructed bathing facilities within Birmingham through funding by the council.

In the 1930’s Kingstanding was a quickly developing area and the committee focussed on providing baths for its residents. As the area was predominantly new build, most houses contained their own washing facilities, thus removing the necessity for ‘public washing facilities’ in Kingstanding. For this reason the planning of Kingstanding Baths concentrated on provision of swimming facilities rather than bathing (washing) facilities.

The following extract is taken directly from The City of Birmingham Baths Department 1851 – 1951. (Written and compiled by J. Moth M.N.A.B.S Birmingham 1951)

The second of the Department’s Baths to be erected in the newly developed areas of the City was at Warren Farm Road, Kingstanding. Opened on the 31st March, 1938, this establishment is well set back from the road with a turfed forecourt, harmonising with the general layout of this part of the district.
The facilities available are similar in every respect to those at Northfield Baths, the large swim being 100ft. by 35ft., graded from 3ft. 3in. to 10ft. 2in., and the learners’ pool 36ft. by 18ft., graded from 2ft. 3in. to 4ft. 6in.

The original Kingstanding Baths building was located on Warren Farm Road. The building was demolished when a new bath buildings was erected on Dulwich Road (B44 0EQ). The Dulwich Road building has undergone extensive refurbishment in recent years and now operates as ’Kingstanding Wellbeing Centre’ – re-launched on 05th June 2018.  

The original baths building has since been replaced by the Kingstanding Club for Ex-Service Men.

[image: C:\Users\John\Pictures\Kings Standing Bowl Barrow Prehistoric Monument location_files\Service Mens Warren Farm Rd.JPG]
Ex-Service Men’s Club – Warren Farm Road


[image: C:\Users\John\Pictures\Kings Standing Bowl Barrow Prehistoric Monument location_files\Kingstanding Wellbeing Centre 2019.JPG]
Section 12		      Churches in Kingstanding:
 12.1	Our Lady of the Assumption Church, Maryvale
This Roman Catholic parish was established in 1669 (see section 10.0 above for further historical information) with the original chapel / church based in Oscott House.
The building also became the home of Cardinal J.H. Newman who named the local area Maryvale. The house was the residence of the parish priest and the chapel served as the parish church. 
In 1851 the Sisters of Mercy were offered the building by Bishop Ullathorne for the founding of a home for orphans. The property had the advantage of being a large building capable of accommodating many children. Eventually the Sisters converted a garden cottage for the use of the priest who became their chaplain as well as parish priest

Following the opening of the orphanage, the Sisters of Mercy founded a school in 1881.  This first school served not only the orphanage but also children from the surrounding area. 
Between the two World Wars, what had been a rural district rapidly became large housing estates in need of larger churches and schools.  

In 1957 the Church of Our Lady of the Assumption was opened at the top of Old Oscott Hill.  The new church, four times the size of the Maryvale chapel, was able to accommodate larger congregations.

Following the opening of the church, Maryvale House (and its chapel) became home to the Adult Education Centre, now Maryvale Institute, the Catholic college for theology and Catholicism. 

[image: http://maryvale.org.uk/Images/SmallChurch.jpg]
Our Lady of the Assumption Catholic Church, Old Oscott Hill

 12.2	St Lukes Church, Caversham Road
St Luke's Church in Caversham Road was consecrated (declared sacred) in 1937.  It delivers services in the Catholic tradition of the Church of England.
Its rectangular building of brown brick, was designed by P J Hunt in an Italianate style typical of its time. The building boasts round-headed (Roman Arch) windows, a small north-west tower with a pyramidal roof and apsidal chancel. The church was extended in the 1960s and again in 1995 with the addition of community facilities. In 2000 a new chapel dedicated to Our Lady of Walsingham was built for weekday services.  

[image: Saint Luke's at Night]
St Lukes Church, Kingstanding

 12.3	Christ the King Church, Warren Farm Road
In 1932 Fr Byrne (a Roman Catholic Franciscan priest) was sent as parish priest to minister parishioners living in the new housing estate being built in Kingstanding.  When he arrived he had no parish accommodation.  He lived with McHugh family at 634 College Road - offering Mass & services in their house.  Later he purchased a property ‘ear-marked to become a corner shop’ on Warren Farm Road (This building is currently a ‘take-away’ next to St John’s centre). 

For a time Sunday Mass was celebrated in the College Arms Public House ‘Assembly Room’ (owned by the McDonalds family) and later at Cranbourne Road School before the parish built a wooden church on the current Christ the King Church site at 124 Warren Farm Road. 
In 1941 Fr Byrne moved from the parish to go to serve as a chaplain in the army.  At this time fundraising and planning was undertaken to allow the parish to build a new permanent church.
 
[image: Related image]
College Arms, Kingstanding where Sunday Mass was celebrated

The foundation stone of Christ the King church was laid in April 1962.  To facilitate building work the former wooden structure church was re-erected at the back of the current site.  Unfortunately one evening in 1962 the wooden building caught fire and was severely damaged and services were then delivered from Christ the King School Hall.  The ceremony of consecration of the current Christ the King Catholic Church was on 28th April 1994.

[image: C:\Users\John\Pictures\Christ the King Church.jpg]
Christ the King Catholic Church, 124 Warren Farm Road


 12.4	St. Marks Church, Brandywood Crescent

The site for the church, on Bandywood Crescent was acquired in 1936, but the Second World War prevented any progress in building. When building began, St Mark’s was made a dual-purpose building (worship and social activities) with the Clergy House built alongside.
The original church on Bandywood Crescent, (the present Parish Centre) was opened on Sunday, October 5th 1952 by the Bishop of Birmingham.

Between 1968 and 1971 work was undertaken to convert the original dual-purpose building into the Parish Centre and to build a new church onto the frontage on Bandywood Crescent. This current elliptical building was consecrated on March 13th 1971. 

Saint Mark’s Church serves the Parish of Kingstanding.  This is an Anglo-Catholic church proclaiming the Gospel and the Sacraments in the modern Catholic tradition under the Episcopal care of the Bishop of Ebbsfleet.

[image: C:\Users\John\Downloads\IMG_6264.JPG]
St Mark’s Church, Kingstanding 2019

 12.5	Elim Life Church, Warren Road

‘Elim Life’ a Pentecostal church based in Warren Road, Kingstanding.  The current Elim Church, a brick building, was opened in 1957. The church was founded in a temporary building in 1937.

The church seeks to help all generations in the community with activities organised by the leadership of the church. 

[image: C:\Users\John\Downloads\IMG_6298.JPG]
Elim Life Church Kingstanding

 12.6	Methodist Church, Kings Road

Following the Christian traditions of John Wesley, this church has for many years served the people of Kingstanding. 
It is one of 12 churches from the Sutton Park Methodist Circuit which strives to support and encourage members to grow in the following ways:
· the holiness, transformation and commitment of her members (growth in depth) - both individuals and churches
· transformed society (growth in the outworking of our discipleship)
· increased number of disciples of Jesus Christ (growth in numbers of new members)

The Methodist Church centre is also the home of the Boys Brigade, Girls Brigade and a range of community support groups.

[image: C:\Users\John\Downloads\IMG_6266.JPG]
Kingstanding Methodist Church Centre 2019

Section 13		Kingstanding Today

At the time of the 2011 Population Census, Kingstanding had a population 25,334.  It has a population density of 5,410 people per km compared with 3,649 people per km for Birmingham as a whole.  It is therefore more densely populated that many other Birmingham wards. 
· In the 2011 census the population of Kingstanding was made up of approximately 52% females and 48% males.
· The average age of people in Kingstanding is 35, while the median age in England is lower at 34.
· 86.9% of people living in Kingstanding were born in England. Other declared country of birth as: 1.7% Ireland, 1.5% Jamaica, 0.7% India, 0.6% Pakistan, 0.6% Northern Ireland, 0.5% Scotland, 0.5% Wales, 0.4% Zimbabwe, 0.4% Nigeria
· 94.4% of people living in Kingstanding speak English. Other languages spoken are: 1.1% Polish, 0.4% Urdu, 0.4% Panjabi, 0.3% Bengali, 0.3% Somali, 0.2% French. 
· The religious make up of Kingstanding:  58.6% Christian, 26.9% No religion, 4.6% Muslim, 0.9% Hindu, 0.7% Sikh, 0.3% Buddhist, 0.1% Jewish. 

Kingstanding remains primarily a social housing estate.  There were no factory or industrial units linked into initial planning of the estate, this remains the case to date.  

The Index of Multiple Deprivation (2015) ranks Kingstanding within the 10% most deprived communities nationally. One Neighbourhood (Birmingham 011ELSQA) is ranked 473 out of 32,844 i.e. 1.44% most deprived nationally.  In this community income/wages are lower, more people are unemployed and health outcomes are poorer.

The End Child Poverty Coalition confirms that over 39% of children in Kingstanding Ward live in Child Poverty (twice the national average). Residents in 30% of homes live in Fuel Poverty as defined by the Energy Act 2013.

However, these research statistics do not properly describe our community which has a rich community spirit – evidenced by the high numbers of local people prepared to share their time, life skills and expertise in helping their community as volunteers working across a range of community organisations.

A current difficulty however is that the majority of houses in Kingstanding were built between 1928 -1938 – between the two World Wars 90 years ago.  This ‘Celebrate Kingstanding Heritage Project’ is in fact celebrating the 90th birthday of the start of the Kingstanding Housing Estate and 80th birthday of its completion.  Many homes and facilities designed to accommodate the needs of families in the 1930’s now need to be brought up to modern standards.


Section 14		Conclusion of this Heritage Research Project

We hope that this research has provided Kingstanding residents, old and new, with insightful information on their heritage. Our aim is to inspire representation, inclusion and pride through knowledge and understanding. 

Our research evidences the rich history and catalogue of significant events that are entrenched in the history of Kingstanding making the area what it is today. Despite consistently evolving, many aspects of Kingstanding’ s cultural heritage are still evident today and can be seen in the sites, landscapes, and memories held with the community. 

Throughout this project it has been apparent that the area we know today as Kingstanding, has been a significant geographical location throughout history. It is important that residents are aware of the area’s extensive cultural heritage so that the history behind it continues play a role in creating and inspiring a community for future generations.
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